
 

 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
Meeting: Licensing Committee 

Date and Time: Tuesday 4 October 2022 7.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber 

Enquiries to: Committee Services 
committeeservices@hart.gov.uk 
 

Members: Wildsmith (Chairman), Butler, Collins, Crisp, 
Coburn, Delaney, Farmer, Forster, Harward, Lamb 
and Smith 

 

Joint Chief Executive CIVIC OFFICES, HARLINGTON WAY 
FLEET, HAMPSHIRE GU51 4AE 

 
AGENDA 

 
This Agenda and associated appendices are provided in electronic form only and 

are published on the Hart District Council Website. 
 

Please download all papers through the Modern.Gov app before the meeting. 
 

• At the start of the meeting, the Lead Officer will confirm the Fire Evacuation 
Procedure. 

 
• The Chairman will announce that this meeting may be recorded and that 

anyone remaining at the meeting has provided their consent to any such 
recording. 

 
  
1 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 3 - 5) 
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 2 August 2022 are attached for confirmation 

and signature as a correct record.   
  
  

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence from Members*. 

 
*Note: Members are asked to email Committee Services in advance of the 
meeting as soon as they become aware they will be absent. 
  

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To declare disclosable pecuniary, and any other, interests*. 

 
*Note: Members are asked to email Committee Services in advance of the 
meeting as soon as they become aware they may have an interest to declare. 
  

4 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
  
5 APPROVAL OF CHARITY COLLECTION POLICY (Pages 6 - 26) 
 
 This report is to update the members of the Licensing Committee of the outcome 

of the public consultation on the draft Shared Licensing Service Charity 
Collections Policy. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Licensing Committee are recommended to: 
  
1.     adopt the Shared Licensing Service Charity Collections Policy, as set out in 

Appendix B to this report; and 
  

2.     authorise the Executive Director - Place to make minor alterations and 
typographical corrections to the Policy. 

  
 

 
Date of Publication:  Monday, 26 September 2022 
 

Page 2



 

 
LIC 5 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
Date and Time: Tuesday 2 August 2022 at 7.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber 

Present:  

Wildsmith (Chairman), Butler, Collins, Farmer, Forster, Harward, Smith, Blewett 
and Engström 
 
In attendance:   
 
Officers:  Mark Jaggard, Executive Director Place 

Emma Coles, Licensing Team Leader, Shared Licensing Services 
Rebecca Borrett, Committee Services and Members Officer 

 
7 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
Members noted part of the previous Decision was to review the Hackney 
Carriage Tariffs in no more than 12 months. 
  
The minutes of 7 June 2022 were agreed and confirmed and signed as a correct 
record. 
 

8 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from: 
  
Councillor Crisp (substituted by Councillor Blewett)  
Councillor Coburn  
Councillor Delaney  
Councillor Lamb (substituted by Councillor Engström) 
 

9 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None declared. 
 

10 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman announced: 
  

• Following previous discussions of members wanting to be able to shadow 
officers on enforcement visits, the Chairman had requested this.  The 
Shared Services Team would shortly send dates for anyone who wished 
to attend. 

• The September meeting will be cancelled as the Business Charity Policy 
is out for consultation and this will finish the date of that meeting. The 
November meeting will also be cancelled and brought forward to October 
to discuss the Business Charity Policy at an early date. 

Public Document Pack

Page 5Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
LIC 6 

 

Members asked why the consultation was issued late so the scheduled 
timeframe could not be met. Officers clarified it was not issued later, there is a 
12-week statuary consultation period which meant it clashed with the next 
meeting.  
  
Members noted the logic of reviewing that policy at the earliest opportunity after 
consultation.  
  
Members requested it be noted as it is not known what will come up between 
now and November, it appears premature to cancel the November at this time.  
  
The Chairman reserved the right to reinstate the November meeting if 
necessary. 
  
 

11 CONSIDERATION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARE REVIEW FOLLOWING 
PUBLIC CONSULTATION  
 
Officers explained it was only the objections be reviewed as representations are 
not part of the Act.  There had been support shown by a number of the drivers, 
but they are not part of this consideration.  
  
The objections were all from drivers apart from one public body. The responses 
in the main support the discussion at the last meeting about the balance 
between supporting the drivers and supporting the public. The public body 
commented this would go against the new Taxi and Private Hire Disability and 
Persons Act Section 167(a).  
  
Members are requested to either uphold the decision made at the previous 
meeting and agree the proposed tariffs or members could modify the table of 
fares. 
  
Members discussed: 
  

• If officers were confident all representation marked as from drivers were. 
Officers confirmed they were. 

• In reference to the parish council’s discrimination comments, if provision 
of a taxi share scheme existed within Hart that would enable a discounted 
rate. Officers confirmed there was, and the figures are the maximum 
amount in the tariff. Drivers can agree lower charges with the customer. 

• As no objections had been received from residents, was it thought a fair 
assumption the previous consideration the committee gave to keeping 
value for money and cost low had been well received. Officers had 
ensured the consultation had been widely received over social media, 
consulted with parishes in the Borough and had ensured it was published, 
so was widely out there for everybody to review. 

• The effective date for implementation. Officers advised a date of 10 
August 2022 would be confirmed with the people responsible for updating 
the meters, if agreed this evening. 

Page 6Page 4



 
LIC 7 

 

  

  
DECISION 
  

1)    That no changes are necessary to the advertised fares with the published 
fare update becoming effective as soon as the meters can be updated. 

  
2)    Ongoing reviews of no more than 12 months. Reviews to be undertaken 

by both Shared Services and Licensing Committee. 

 

 
The meeting closed at 7.13 pm 
 
 

Page 7Page 5



 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
DATE OF MEETING: 4 OCTOBER 2022 
TITLE OF REPORT: APPROVAL FOR ADOPTION OF THE CHARITY 
COLLECTION POLICY FOLLOWING CONSULTATION 
Report of:  Executive Director - Place 
Cabinet Portfolio: Regulatory 
Key Decision: No 
Confidentiality: Non-Exempt 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT  
1. This report is to update the members of the Licensing Committee of the 

outcome of the public consultation on the draft Shared Licensing Service 
Charity Collections Policy. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Licensing Committee are recommended to: 
 
• adopt the Shared Licensing Service Charity Collections Policy, as set out in 

Appendix B to this report; and 
• authorise the Executive Director - Place to make minor alterations and 

typographical corrections to the Policy. 
BACKGROUND 
2. The Council is able to make regulations under the Police, Factories, etc 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916 which regulates collections of money or 
sales of articles for charitable purposes in street and public places.  It is also 
able to use the Charities Act 1992 (the Acts) to regulate the collection of money 
for charitable purposes. 

3. The Charity Collection Policy outlines the general approach of the Shared 
Licensing Service (SLS) when making licensing decisions under the Acts and 
can be reviewed and revised by the SLS at any time. 

4. As part of the SLS with Basingstoke & Deane it is proposed to take this 
opportunity to create a Shared Statement of Licensing Policy. 

5. The draft Charity Collections Policy was considered by Licensing Committee on 
the 5 April 2022.  Licensing Committee approved the Policy for public 
consultation. 

MAIN ISSUES 
6. The consultation ran for a period of 12 weeks, concluding on the 12 August 

2022.  The consultation was conducted via the council web site, and a copy was 
emailed to all current charities that use this service as well as the relevant 
regulatory authorities. 

7. Two representations were made during this time, details of which can be found 
in Appendix A.  No major amendments to the content of the policy have been 
made after the review of these representations. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



 

8. The responses have been considered and minor typographical amendments 
have been made to the policy to improve the clarity of the document as a result. 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
9. Not Applicable.  When considering the draft Policy in April the alternative option 

was to keep two separate policies, one for Hart District Council, and one for 
Basingstoke & Deane Borough Council. 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
Relevance to The Hart Vision 2040 
10. Theme two states, “Empowering people to help themselves whilst ensuring 

there is support for the most vulnerable. Working closely with our partners to 
enable people to live safely and independently and help our most vulnerable 
residents can get the support they need when they need it”. 

Service Plan 
• Is the proposal identified in the Service Plan? No 
• Is the proposal being funded from current budgets? Yes 
• Have staffing resources already been identified and set aside for this proposal? 

Yes 
Legal and Constitutional Issues  
11. The Council is required to regular review this Policy and this Policy has been 

added to the 5-year review cycle. 
12. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must: 

a) be within the legal powers of the Council; 
b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; 
c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on behalf 

of the Council; 
d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements imposed 

by the Council e.g. standing orders and financial regulations; 
e) be fully and properly informed; 
f) be properly motivated; 
g) be taken having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; 

and 
h) be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances. 

 
Financial and Resource Implications  
13. There is no financial impact from this report. 
Risk Management 
14. Policy risks have been considered in accordance with the Council’s risk 

management processes. No significant risks have been identified. Residual 
risks may be controlled through maintained corporate procedures. 

EQUALITIES 
15. When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure 

they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote equality of opportunity, 

Page 7



 

eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people 
who share protected characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do 
not. 

16. There are no direct equalities impacts arising from the recommendations. 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
17. There are no direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the 

recommendations. 
 
ACTION 
18. The licensing authority recommend that the committee approve the Charity 

Collections Policy for adoption. 
19. Task the licensing team to update the council web site with the approved policy. 

Contact Details: Emma Coles – Shared Licensing Team Leader - 
emma.coles@basingstoke.gov.uk 
Appendices  
Appendix A – Consultation Responses 
Appendix B – Charity Collections Policy Final Version 2022 
 

Page 8



APPENDIX 1: Consultation responses 

 

 Consultation comments (verbatim/anonymised) HDC response 
1 One paragraph as quoted below causes some concern 

"4.12 Each application allows a request for one collection date only. No bulk 
booking of future dates will be accepted on multiple or simultaneous applications. 
This 
is to ensure a fair booking process and allow availability of dates to a wider 
range of 
charities" 
As co-ordinator of the Club's Christmas collections, it is important that our 
members know in advance the date of collections to ensure sufficient manning. 
In the past I have been able to apply for a number of dates during December on 
one application. It would seem that your intention is to restrict organizations such 
as ours to a single date. I hope that is not the case and that some discretion can 
be built into the system of licencing 
 

No change to the policy made. This 
point has not changed since the last 
version of the policy, it is designed that 
way so one individual charity cannot 
monopolise dates at the disadvantage of 
other charities. 

2 Having reviewed the Charity collections policy, the following points have been 
noted. 
1. Charity Collections Policy Pages1 to 9 
4. Administration of Charity Street Collections: 
4.9 Should the word charity be added within: "All public streets in the area will be 
restricted to one "charity" 
collection per month"? 
5. House to House Collections  
2. Appendix A, Pages 10 to 12 There seems to issues in this section with the 
numbering of sub points. 
15. Either point b) is missing or point c) should be changed to b) 
Following the above point, the numbering commences at 3 and 4, either 1 and 2 
are missing or 3 and 4 should be changed to 1 and 2. 
Appendix B – Financial Return 
 
Should point (2) be aligned with point (1) rather than aligned with points (a), (b) 
and (c)? 

 
 
 
Amended in the policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Amended in the policy 
 
 
 

P
age 9



APPENDIX 1: Consultation responses 

 

I also have a question regarding completing the financial return see the section I 
have highlighted in red below and my question follows this.  
 
Appendix B – Financial Return 
 
(2) The said person shall also, within the same period, at the expense of that 
person and after a qualified accountant has given his certificate under paragraph 
(1) (a), publish in such newspaper or newspapers as the SLS may direct, a 
statement showing the name of the person to whom the permit has been 
granted, the area to which the permit relates, the name of the charity or fund to 
benefit, the date of the collection, the amount collected and the amount of the 
expenses any payments incurred in connection with such collection 
  
Guide Dog branches are now taking contactless payments and as a branch we 
are notified by Guide Dogs group banking department the total receipts 
processed and can include this in our return however any processing charges for 
each receipt are not usually notified to each branch. They will be recorded within 
the Guide Dog company accounts as an expense as per point 4.23 in Section 4 
of Administration of Charity Street Collections however please clarify if 
processing charges are required on the financial return as I am not sure that 
charges will be broken down by individual receipts? If processing charges are 
not considered expenses for any payments incurred, then maybe this sections 
need rewording to be clearer. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
No changes made. Points 1 and 2 
describe the two requirements for the 
financial return and though they are 
linked they are different actions which 
the collector needs to undertake. 
 
 
Processing charges should be included 
within your return under the expenses 
section on the returns form.  
 

 

P
age 10



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Charity Collections Policy 
 

2022 to 2027 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
 

Contents 
1 Introduction ...........................................................................................................3 
2 Policy Objectives ...................................................................................................3 
3 Definitions .............................................................................................................3 
4 Administration of Charity Street Collections ..........................................................4 
5 House to House Collections ..................................................................................7 
Appendix A – Street Collection Regulations ..............................................................10 
Appendix B – Financial Return ..................................................................................13 
Appendix C – Code of Conduct for Charity Collecting by Direct Debit ......................14 
Appendix D – House to House Collections Regulations 1947 ...................................15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 12



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 

1 Introduction 
 

1.1 The Shared Licensing Service (SLS) is responsible for issuing permits 
for street charitable collections in Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council 
and Hart District Council. 

1.2 Charitable Street collections are regulated under The Police, Factories, 
etc (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916 which regulates collections of money 
or sales of articles for charitable purposes in street and public places. 

1.3 The Act allows Local Authorities to make Regulations in respect of the 
administration of charitable street collections. The regulations made by the 
SLS for Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council and Hart District Council can 
be found in Appendix A. 

1.4 The aim of this policy is to provide guidance on the law relating to 
charity street collections and how the SLS administers applications for permits 
when applying the law and regulations so as to ensure fairness to charities. 

1.5 This policy will be subject to review every 5 years. 

2 Policy Objectives 
 

2.1 The policy aims are: 

• To ensure applications are made in a timely manner whilst setting 
out a clear and robust application process. 

• To ensure impartiality and fairness in determining applications 

• To accommodate applications where possible, having regard to 
other activities occurring at locations applied for to avoid conflict. 

• To prevent nuisance or other detrimental impacts on the public 
using the streets. 

• To ensure that all monies collected are rigorously handled, 
transferred and accounted for. 

3 Definitions 
 

3.1 ‘Charity' - An institution which 

a) Is established for Charitable purposes only, and 
b) Falls to be subject to the control of the high court in the exercise of its 

jurisdiction with respect to charities. 

Page 13



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
3.2 ‘Charitable Purpose' - 

a) The prevention of relief or poverty 
b) The advancement of education 
c) The advancement of religion 
d) The advancement of health or the saving of lives 
e) The advancement of citizenship or community development 
f) The advancement of the arts, culture, heritage, or science 
g) The advancement of amateur sport 
h) The advancement of human rights, conflict resolution or reconciliation or 

the promotion of religious or racial harmony or equality and diversity 
i) The advancement of environmental protection or improvement 
j) The relief of those in need by reason of youth, age, ill health, disability, 

financial hardship or other disadvantage 
k) The advancement of animal welfare 
l) The promotion of the efficiency of the armed forces of the Crown, or of the 

police, fire and rescue services or ambulance services 

3.3 ‘Promoters' 

a) A person or organisation who causes others to act as collectors 

4 Administration of Charity Street Collections 
 

The SLS acting for Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council and Hart District 
Council acknowledges the need for charities to raise much needed funds to 
support valuable causes by a variety of methods. Charity street collection 
permits will be granted whenever possible, subject to any limitations or 
restrictions detailed within this policy. 

4.1 Any cash collection, undertaken in any street or public place, should be 
licensed by way of a permit from the relevant Local Authority in accordance with the 
Police, Factories, etc (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916 as amended by the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

4.2 Street is defined in the Act as follows. “Street” includes any highway and 
any public bridge, road, lane, footway, square, court, alley, or passage, whether a 
thoroughfare or not. 

4.3 The regulations under which permits are issued can be found in Appendix 
A. These are in place to ensure that collections do not result in nuisance or 
annoyance to the public and local businesses and to provide an audit trail in respect 
of the allocation of donations. 

4.4 Charitable collections in stores, supermarkets or on private land do not 
require a Street Collection permit from the council. Collections will usually require the 
permission from the store or private land owner to allow the collection to take place. 

Page 14



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
4.5 The SLS does not issue permits to collect in any of the following privately 
owned shopping centres 

Festival Place – Basingstoke 
The Malls – Basingstoke 
Chineham Shopping Centre - Basingstoke 
The Hart Shopping Centre – Hart 

 

or where a collection is proposed to take place within premises privately owned 
where public access can be restricted by the owner, such as retail shops and other 
privately owned business premises. In such cases permission will be required from 
the site Management Company. 

4.7 Top of Town area Basingstoke- The ‘Top of the Town' area includes 
Market Place, Winchester Street, London Street, Wote Street and (upper) Church 
Street. This location is also the site for the regular and seasonal markets. 

4.8 Only one cash charity collection permit per month will be granted for this 
area. Charities will be restricted to one collection per year. No charity collection 
permits are granted for any day that a Market event is taking place. The regular 
market occurs on Wednesdays and Saturdays and on other days leading up to 
Christmas. Further seasonal and international market events occur on other days 
throughout the year. Applicants are expected to check whether a market is present 
on dates before making an application. Market dates can be obtained by contacting 
the council's market operator ‘Hughmark' at www.hughmark.co.uk or by phoning 
them on 0118 945 1799. 

4.9 Remainder of the Areas in Basingstoke and Hart —All public streets in 
the area will be restricted to one charity collection per month and no charity will be 
granted with a permit to collect in the same street more than once in any six month 
period. Applications for permits outside of this policy will be considered on their 
individual merits. Provision will be made for the granting of permits for additional 
charitable collections in times of national or international disasters and for specific 
occasions, for example, (but not restricted to) Remembrance Sunday and Christmas. 

4.10 Pre booking - The SLS will accept written requests to check availability 
and provisionally reserve a date and location prior to applying. This should be 
undertaken where possible by emailing licensing@basingstoke.gov.uk for 
Basingstoke collections and licence@hart.gov.uk for Hart collections expressing the 
date requested. Only one proposed collection date per email will be acknowledged to 
ensure fairness to all charities. Alternatively, applicants may write to the SLS Team 
at the address at the end of this Policy document. Once a date has been 
provisionally reserved an application form must be received within 10 working days 
or the provisional reservation will be cancelled. 

4.11 Applications will only be accepted on the council issued application form 
available by downloading from the council's website at www.basingstoke.gov.uk for 

Page 15

http://www.hughmark.co.uk/
mailto:licensing@basingstoke.gov.uk
mailto:licence@hart.gov.uk
http://www.basingstoke.gov.uk/


Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
Basingstoke or www.hart.gov.uk for Hart both areas can also apply online through 
www.gov.uk  All applications must be submitted no later than one month before the 
requested date of collection. 
 

4.12 Each application allows a request for one collection date only. No bulk 
booking of future dates will be accepted on multiple or simultaneous applications. 
This is to ensure a fair booking process and allow availability of dates to a wider 
range of charities. 

4.13 Where applications are made for collections along a route, such as in a 
procession, full details of the route and number of collectors must be provided. 

4.14 Successful applications will result in permits being issued where possible, 
within 10 working days of receipt of the completed and valid application form. 

4.15 Where applications are submitted in response to national or international 
disasters shorter application and determination periods will be allowed wherever 
possible and on a case by case basis. 

4.16 The SLS may wish to make additional checks on a particular charity or 
promoter named on an application and reserves the right to do so. Enquiries may 
also be made with the Police and the Charity Commission where it is deemed 
appropriate. 

4.17 The SLS may, if considered appropriate consult with other council teams for 
example (but not restricted to); Highways, Street Cleansing and Property services to 
ensure that an application will not impact on highways safety and cleanliness or 
conflict with any other events occurring. 

4.18 The legislation does not include any statutory criteria for the approval or 
rejection of an application for a permit. The granting or refusal of an application will 
be at the council's discretion having regard to the individual application, the date and 
any potential impact with other activities and the history of conduct during previous 
charity collections made by the applicant. 

4.19 Where a financial return is not received within the 28 days required in the 
Regulations detailed in Appendix B, no further permits will be granted until such time 
as financial return is up to date. Where an applicant fails to comply with the 
regulations in respect of financial returns on two occasions, the SLS reserves the 
right to refuse any subsequent request for a permit by that applicant. 

4.20 The SLS may also choose to refuse an application for one or more of the 
following reasons: 

i) The collection is considered not to be for charitable purposes 
ii) The application contravenes the provisions of the street 

collection legislation and regulations 
iii) To limit the number of collections 

Page 16

http://www.hart.gov.uk/


Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
iv) The proceeds allocated for expenses is considered to be too 

high 
v) inaccurate information was provided on the application 
vi) the promoter or any other person involved has been convicted of 

certain criminal convictions, in particular offences of dishonesty, 
theft, blackmail or fraud. 

4.21 A permit may be revoked after issue for any of the above or other relevant 
reasons. 

4.22 It is the SLS's intention to support, as far as reasonably possible; all 
applications for charitable collections save for any restrictions or other relevant 
matters within this policy. 

4.23 Contactless payments, cheques and chip and pin payments are included 
under the cash collection requirements of this policy. Card transactions will require 
the collector to meet the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (PCI-DSS). 
The collecting charity must use extra security measures such as verified by Visa and 
3D Secure code for transactions. If the Charity is charged for transferring payments, 
then the Charity must record the total donation amount as income and record the 
charges in your accounts as ‘expenditure’. 
 

4.24 Collections made by direct debit - Charity collections made by direct debit 
only do not fall within the scope of the Act or the Regulations. The SLS operates a 
voluntary code of conduct for charities wishing to collect in this area. Details of the 
voluntary code of conduct can be found in Appendix C. Only one direct debit 
collection permit will be granted. Charities will be restricted to one collection per 
year. 

4.25 It is expected that all charities wishing to collect funds by means of direct debit 
will sign up to and adhere to the SLS's voluntary code of conduct for direct debit 
collections and apply for a permit. 
 

5 House to House Collections 
 

5.1 House to House collections involve the collection of either money or items 
directly from a persons property. They are a vital source of funds for many charities 
as they offer a positive opportunity for the public to support charities. However, they 
need to be carried out for the benefit of the charity and in accordance with the law. 
There has been an increase in the number of bogus house to house collectors and 
as such it is vital that licences are issued to legitimate companies. This can give the 
public confidence that if the company is licensed their donations are being directed 
to the appropriate charity. 

5.2 House to House collections are currently regulated by the House to House 
Collections Act 1939 and the House to House Collections Regulations 1947, 

Page 17

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/ISQLCmOooHjVVBnSwliB7?domain=eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com


Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
Appendix D. There are National exemption orders List of National Exemption Order 
holders - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) that are available to charities who have undertaken 
a high number of collections across local authority areas in the preceding two years. 
These are issued to the various charities by central government directly. 

5.3 This policy should give clear guidance to both officers and members on 
factors to be taken into account when determining applications for House to House 
Collections. 

5.4 On application the organisation must supply information relating to:-  

1) Whether it is a registered charity including its charity number and the objectives of 
the charitable cause as supplied to the Charity Commission  

2) A statement of the organisation's aims as detailed in any literature  

3) Details of the history of the organisation, i.e. when formed; names of trustees, 
directors, organisers, etc  

4) Accounts and any relevant financial statements 

5.5 In addition, it must be clear as part of the application process how much the 
charity will receive as part of the collection, the proportion of this as a percentage of 
the cost of running the collection and a clear set of returns if the organisation has 
operated collections before. 

5.6 Legal Reasons for Refusal – The SLS may refuse to grant a licence, or, 
where a licence has been issued may revoke it, if it appears to the authority that: -  

1) The total amount likely to be applied for charitable purposes as the result of the 
collection (including any amount already so applied) is inadequate in proportion to 
the value of the proceeds likely to be received (including any proceeds already 
received);  

2) Remuneration which is excessive in relation to the total amount aforesaid is likely 
to be, or has been, retained or received out of the proceeds of the collection by any 
person;  

3) The grant of a licence would be likely to facilitate the commission of an offence 
under Section Three of the Vagrancy Act 1824, or that an offence under that section 
has been committed in connection with the collection;  

4) The applicant or the holder of the licence is not a fit and proper person to hold a 
licence by reason of the fact that he has been convicted in the United Kingdom of 
any of the offences specified in the Schedule to this Act, or has been convicted in 
any part of Her Majesty’s dominions of any offence conviction for which necessarily 
involved a finding that he acted fraudulently or dishonestly, or of an offence of a kind 
the commission of which would be likely to be facilitated by the grant of a licence;  

5) The applicant or the holder of the licence, in promoting a collection in respect of 

Page 18

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-exemption-order-scheme/list-of-national-exemption-order-holders
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-exemption-order-scheme/list-of-national-exemption-order-holders


Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
which a licence has been granted to him, has failed to exercise due diligence to 
secure that persons authorised by him to act as collectors for the purposes of the 
collection were fit and proper persons, to secure compliance on the part of persons 
so authorised with the provisions of regulations made under this Act, or to prevent 
prescribed badges or prescribed certificates of authority being obtained by persons 
other than persons so authorised; or  

6) The applicant or holder of the licence has refused or neglected to furnish to the 
Authority such information as they may have reasonably required for the purpose of 
informing themselves as to any of the matters specified in the foregoing paragraphs. 

5.7 When considering applications the financial information given is sometime 
difficult to interpret. Applicants must give clear indication as to the percentage of the 
collection that will be given to the charity. Where this is unclear serious consideration 
will be given to refusing the application. 

5.8 If the proportion allocated to the charity is clear, officers must be satisfied 
that the amount to be given to the charity is adequate in relation to the proceeds 
received. The cost of collection needs to be taken into account and balanced against 
the perception of the public that all of the items or money they donate will be given to 
charity. Refusal of the application should be given serious consideration when less 
than 80% of the value of the collection is being given to the charity 

5.9 It is common practice for collectors to be paid by organisations to collect 
money and products. When determining the remuneration and whether this is 
excessive the nature of the business and the overheads should be taken into 
account and balanced against the amount being given to the charity. The salaries 
received by Directors and key employees should also be considered as part of this 
assessment. Refusal of the application should be given serious consideration when 
the amount is greater than 20% of the value of the collection. 

5.10 If no previous returns have been supplied to the SLS after previous 
licensed collections within the District then the application should be refused. In 
addition, any action taken as a result of not complying with regulations on operating 
House to House collections would also be grounds for refusal unless there are 
extenuating circumstances. 
 

5.11 Refusal and Appeal - If officers are minded to refuse an application then the 
must clearly state the reasons for the refusal and return the application. 

5.12 Applicants may appeal an officer decision to the Licensing sub-committee for 
determination. 
 

 

 

 

Page 19



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 

Appendix A – Street Collection Regulations 
The SLS for Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council and Hart District Council 
Street Collection Regulations 
Made in pursuance of Section 5 of the Police, Factories etc Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act 1916 

 

In exercise of the powers conferred upon it by Section 5 of the Police, Factories, etc. 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916, as amended by Section 251 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and Schedule 29 to that Act, Basingstoke and Deane Borough 
Council has made the following Regulations with respect to the places where and the 
conditions under which persons may be permitted in any street or public place with the 
District of Basingstoke and Deane to collect money or sell articles for the benefit of 
charitable or other purposes. 

In these Regulations, unless the context otherwise requires: 

• COLLECTION means a collection of money or articles for the benefit of 
charitable or other purposes and the word COLLECTOR shall be construed 
accordingly. 

• PROMOTOR means a person who causes others to act as collectors. 
• THE LICENSING AUTHORITY means Basingstoke & Deane Borough 

Council or Hart District Council by the SLS. 
• PERMIT means a permit for collection. 
• CONTRIBUTOR means a person who contributes to a collection and includes 

a purchaser of articles for sale for the benefit of charitable or other purposes. 
• COLLECTING BOX means a box or other receptacle for the reception of 

money from contributors. 
 

1. No collection, other than a collection taken at a meeting in the open air, 
shall be made in any street or public place within the Basingstoke and 
Deane Borough Council or Hart District Council unless a promoter shall 
have obtained from the Licensing Authority, a permit. 

2. Application for a permit shall be made in writing not later than one month 
before the date on which it is proposed to make the collection; provided 
that the Licensing Authority may reduce the period of one month if 
satisfied that there are special reasons for doing so. 

3. No collection shall be made except upon the day and between the hours 
stated on the permit. 

4. The Licensing Authority may, in granting a permit, limit the collection to 
such streets or public places or such parts thereof, as it thinks fit. 

5. (1) No person may assist or take part in any collection without the 
written authority of the promoter. 

(2) Any person authorised under paragraph (1) above shall produce 

Page 20



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
such written authority forthwith for inspection on being requested to do 
so by a duly authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or any 
constable. 

6. No collection shall be made in any part of the carriageway of any street 
which has a footway: provided that the Licensing Authority may, if it 
thinks fit, allow a collection to take place on the said carriageway where 
such collection had been authorised to be held in connection with a 
procession. 

7. No collection shall be made in a manner likely to inconvenience or annoy 
any person. 

8. No collection shall importune any person to the annoyance of 
such person. 

9. While collecting: 
a) a collector shall remain stationary and 

b) a collector or two collectors shall not be nearer to another collector 
than 25 metres, provided that the Licensing Authority may, if it thinks fit, 
waive the requirement of the Regulation in respect of a collection which 
had been authorised to be held in connection with a procession. 

10. No promoter, collector or person who is otherwise connected with a 
collection shall permit a person under the age of sixteen years to act as 
a collector. 

11. a) Every collector shall carry a collecting box. 

b) All collecting boxes shall be numbered consecutively and shall be 
securely closed and sealed in such a way as to prevent their being 
opened without the seal being broken. 

c) All money received by a collector from contributors shall immediately 
be placed in a collecting box. 

d) Every collector shall deliver, unopened, all collecting boxes in his 
possession to a promoter. 

12. A collector shall not carry or use any collecting box, receptacle or 
tray which does not bear displayed prominently thereon the name of the 
charity or fund which is to benefit, nor any collecting box which is not 
duly numbered. 

13. a) Subject to paragraph b) below, a collecting box shall be opened 
in the presence of a promoter and another responsible person. 

b) Where a collection box is delivered, unopened, to a bank it may be 
opened by an official of the bank. 

c) As soon as a collecting box has been opened, the person opening it 
shall count the contents and shall enter the amount, with the number of 
the collecting box, on a list which shall be certified by that person. 

Page 21



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
14. (1) No payment shall be made to any collector. 

a) No payment shall be made out of the proceeds of a collection, 
either directly or indirectly, to any other person connected with the 
promotion or conduct of such collection for, or in respect of, services 
connected therewith, except such payments as may have been 
approved by the Licensing Authority. 

(2) The Licensing Authority may, if satisfied that there are special reasons for doing, 
extend the period of one month referred to in paragraph (1) above. 

(3) For the purpose of this Regulation, a qualified accountant means a member of 
one or more of the following bodies: 

• The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. 

• The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland 

• The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland 

• The Association of Certified Accountants 

a) These regulations shall not apply: 

i) in respect of a collection taken at a meeting in the open air or 

ii) to the selling of articles in any street or public place when the 
articles are sold in the ordinary course of trade. 

b) Any person who acts in contravention of any of the foregoing Regulations 
 shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding fifty pounds. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 

Appendix B – Financial Return 

(1) WITHIN ONE MONTH AFTER THE DATE OF A COLLECTION, the person 
to whom the permit has been granted shall forward to the SLS: 

a) a STATEMENT in the form set out in the Schedule to these 
Regulations, or in a form to the like effect, showing the amount received 
and the expenses and payments incurred in connection with such a 
collection, and certified by that person and a QUALIFIED 
ACCOUNTANT. 
 

b)  A list of the collectors. 
 

c) A list of the amounts contained in each collecting box. 

and shall, if required by the SLS, satisfy it as to the proper application of 
the proceeds of the collection. 

(2) The said person shall also, within the same period, at the expense of that person 
and after a qualified accountant has given his certificate under paragraph (1) (a), 
publish in such newspaper or newspapers as the SLS may direct, a statement 
showing the name of the person to whom the permit has been granted, the area to 
which the permit relates, the name of the charity or fund to benefit, the date of the 
collection, the amount collected and the amount of the expenses any payments 
incurred in connection with such collection. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 

Appendix C – Code of Conduct for Charity Collecting by Direct Debit 
 

1. Permission is granted for a maximum of 4 collectors to work in the area. Only 
2 collectors allowed in any one street at a time. 

2. Only one direct debit collection allowed per month. 

3. Permission will be issued on a first come, first served basis but with provision 
that if a collection has previously been carried out in the area for the same 
charity within the previous six months, priority would be given to another 
charity who hadn't yet collected within that time period. The SLS will aim to 
confirm two weeks prior to the date requested. This would be with the 
exception of national emergencies to which all priorities would be given. 

4. Bookings for direct debit collections will be taken a minimum of 28 days prior 
to the dates required and a maximum of 3 months in advance. 

5. The name of the charity and their charity number must be given at the time of 
request. 

6. Requests must be made on official application forms and signed to say the 
collectors abide by the code of conduct. 

7. The SLS request the right to obtain copies of the solicitation statement. 

8. When collecting, members of the public should not be harassed, pressurized, 
or misled. 

9. Collectors must always respect the public and behave appropriately. 

10. No promoter, collector or person who is otherwise connected to the collection 
shall permit a person under the age of sixteen years to act as a collector. 

11. The public has the right to request permission to see the permit at any given 
time during the collection to ensure the appropriate measures have been 
taken. 

12. The SLS has the right to refuse a permit. 

13. I.D should always be worn for verification purposes. 

14. GDPR requirements are maintained when handling personal details. 

15. A full and accurate report is made when a member of the public has felt the 
need to complain, and the details passed onto the SLS Team. 

 

 

 

Page 24



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 

Appendix D – House to House Collections Regulations 1947 
 

The above Act and the Regulations made thereunder contain important provisions 
for THE REGULATION OF HOUSE TO HOUSE COLLECTIONS FOR 
CHARITABLE PURPOSES, and prescribe FINES AND/OR IMPRISONMENT for 
offences against the Act or the Regulations.  

1. Except in the cases specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4:- No collection in any locality 
for a charitable purpose may be made unless the promoter is licensed by the 
Licensing Authority for the area comprising that locality, and the collectors are 
authorised by the promoter.  

2. Application for a licence must be made in the prescribed manner. The Licensing 
Authority cannot grant a licence for a period longer than twelve months and may 
refuse a licence, or where granted, may revoke it, in circumstances specified in the 
Act. There is a right of Appeal to the Secretary of the State against the refusal or the 
revocation of a licence, within fourteen days from the date on which notice is given of 
the refusal or the revocation.  

3. Where the Secretary of State is satisfied that a person pursues a charitable 
purpose throughout the whole, or a substantial part, of England and Wales, and is 
desirous of promoting collections for that purpose, the Secretary of State may by 
Order direct, in effect, that such persons shall be exempt from the requirement to 
obtain licences from the Licensing Authority, as respects all collections for that 
purpose in such localities as may be described in the Order.  

4. If the Chief Constable for the Police Area comprising a locality in which a 
collection for a charitable purpose is being, or proposed to be, made is satisfied that 
the purpose is local in character, and that the collection is likely to be completed 
within a short period, he may grant to the person who appears to him to be 
principally concerned in the promotion of the collection a Certificate in the prescribed 
form; and where a Certificate is so granted, a Licence from the Licensing authority is 
not required, and the provisions of the Regulations (as to which see Paragraph 5 
below) shall not apply to a collection made in conformity with such Certificate.  

5. Regulations have been made by the Secretary of State under the Act. The 
Regulations include the following, amongst other provisions - (a) Every promoter of a 
collection must exercise all due diligence to secure that persons authorised to act as 
collectors are fit and proper persons; and to secure compliance by collectors with the 
Regulations (b) No promoter of a collection shall permit any person to act as a 
collector unless he has issued to that person – (i) a prescribed Certificate of 
Authority; (ii) a prescribed badge, and (iii) if money is to be collected, a Collecting 
Box marked, or a Receipt Book (with receipts and counterfoils or duplicates 
consecutively numbered) marked on every receipt, with a general indication of the 
purpose of the collection, and a distinguishing number. (c) In the case of a collection 
in respect of which a Licence has been granted, every prescribed Certificate of 
Authority shall be given on a form obtained from H.M. Stationery Office, and every 
prescribed badge shall be so obtained. (d) No person under the age of 16 years, 
shall act or be authorised to act as a collector of money. (e) No collector shall 
importune any person to the annoyance of such person, or remain in, or at the door 

Page 25



Reviewed September 2022 
Next Review September 2027 

 
of, any house if requested to leave by any occupant thereof. (f) The promoter of a 
collection must furnish an account of the collection in the form prescribed to the 
Licensing Authority or the Secretary of State, as the case may be. DEFINITIONS  

6. “Charitable Purpose” means any charitable, benevolent, or philanthropic purpose. 
“Collection” means an appeal to the public, made by means of visits from house to 
house, to give, whether for consideration or not, money or other property; and 
“Collector” means a person who makes the appeal in the course of such visits. 
“House” includes a place of business. “Proceeds” means, in relation to a collection, 
all money and all other property given, whether for consideration or not, in response 
to the appeal. “Promoter” means a person who causes others to act as collectors for 
the purposes of the collection. FURTHER INFORMATION  

7. For further information, reference should be made to the Act and Regulations, 
which are obtained, from H.M. Stationery Office, P.O. Box 569, London. SE1 9NH, or 
through any bookseller. The House to House Collections Act 1939 and House to 
House Regulations 1947 (as amended) is reproduced under the terms of Crown 
Copyright Policy Guidance issued by HMSO. 

Enquiries to: The Shared Licensing Service, Basingstoke & Deane Borough Council, 
Civic Offices, London Road, Basingstoke, Hants. RG21 4AH. Telephone 01256 
844844 Email: licensing@basingstoke.gov.uk 
 

Page 26

mailto:licensing@basingstoke.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes

	5 APPROVAL OF CHARITY COLLECTION POLICY
	RECOMMENDATION
	22 10 04 Appendix A
	22 10 04 Appendix B - Charity Collections Policy
	1	Introduction
	2	Policy Objectives
	3	Definitions
	4	Administration of Charity Street Collections
	5	House to House Collections
	Appendix A – Street Collection Regulations
	Appendix B – Financial Return
	Appendix C – Code of Conduct for Charity Collecting by Direct Debit
	Appendix D – House to House Collections Regulations 1947



